
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Henry Merricks-Murgatroyd, Democratic 
Services Officer on 01432 260239 or e-mail Henry.Merricks-
Murgatroyd@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Connected Communities 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 12 March 2025 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire Council, Plough 
Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Henry Merricks-Murgatroyd, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01432 260239 

Email: Henry.Merricks-Murgatroyd@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the meeting of the Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Membership 

 

  
Chairperson Councillor Ed O'Driscoll 
Vice-chairperson Councillor Frank Cornthwaite 
   
 Councillor Bruce Baker 

Councillor Elizabeth Foxton 
Councillor Rob Owens 
Councillor Roger Phillips 
Councillor Diana Toynbee 

 

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  12 MARCH 2025 
 

 

Agenda 

 Pages 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES 
 

 

 To receive details of any councillor nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

13 - 20 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 15 January 2025. 
 

 

HOW TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS 
 

 

The deadline for the submission of questions for this meeting is 5.00 pm on 
Thursday 6 March 2025. 
 

Questions must be submitted to councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk.  
Questions sent to any other address may not be accepted. 
 

Accepted questions and the responses will be published as a supplement to 
the agenda papers prior to the meeting.  Further information and guidance is 
available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved 
 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the public. 
 

 

6.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 

 To receive any written questions from members of the council. 
 

 

7.   HIGHWAYS WINTER MAINTENANCE 
 

To Follow 

 To provide a review of winter maintenance of highways following the 2024/25 
winter period, endorsing or otherwise the current arrangements and providing 
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Roads and Regulatory Services 
ahead of the 2025/26 winter season.  
 

 

8.   UPDATE ON RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THE CONNECTED 
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

To Follow 

 To provide the committee with an update to recommendations made by the 
committee since July 2023. 
 

 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 2024/5 
 

21 - 44 

 To consider the work programme for Herefordshire Council’s Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2024/25. 
 

 

10.   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 

 

mailto:councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved


 
Herefordshire Council  12 MARCH 2025 
 

 

 The date of the next meeting is Tuesday 13 May 2025, 14:00 pm. 
 

 



The public’s rights to information and attendance at meetings 

You have a right to: 

 Attend all council, cabinet, committee and sub-committee meetings unless the business to be 
transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.  
Agenda and reports (relating to items to be considered in public) are available at 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings 

 Inspect minutes of the council and all committees and sub-committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the cabinet or individual cabinet members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to four 
years from the date of the meeting (a list of the background papers to a report is given at the 
end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in 
writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all councillors with 
details of the membership of cabinet and of all committees and sub-committees.  Information 
about councillors is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the council have delegated decision 
making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.  The council’s constitution is 
available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
council, cabinet, committees and sub-committees and to inspect documents. 

Recording of meetings 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that it 
does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance support team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

The council may make a recording of this public meeting or stream it live to the council’s 
website.  Such videos are made available for members of the public via the council’s YouTube 
channel at www.youtube.com/@HerefordshireCouncil/streams 

Public transport links 

The Herefordshire Council office at Plough Lane is located off Whitecross Road in Hereford, 
approximately 1 kilometre from the City Bus Station. 

Bus maps are available here: www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/download/78/bus_maps 

5

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution
https://www.youtube.com/@HerefordshireCouncil/streams
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/download/78/bus_maps




 

      

The seven principles of public life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and 
treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

7





 

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  Updated 2 July 2024 

 

Guide to Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Scrutiny is a statutory role fulfilled by councillors who are not members of the cabinet.  

The role of the scrutiny committees is to help develop policy, to carry out reviews of council and 
other local services, and to hold decision makers to account for their actions and decisions. 

Council has decided that there will be five scrutiny committees.  The committees reflect the 
balance of political groups on the council. 

The Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee consists of 7 councillors. 

Councillor Party 

Bruce Baker Conservative Party 

Frank Cornthwaite (Vice-Chairperson) Conservative Party 

Elizabeth Foxton Independents for Herefordshire  

Ed O'Driscoll (Chairperson) Liberal Democrats 

Rob Owens Liberal Democrats 

Roger Phillips Conservative Party 

Diana Toynbee The Green Party 
 

Scrutiny functions 

The committees have the power: 

(a) to review, influence policy or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection 
with the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the executive, 

(b) to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with respect to the 
discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the executive, 

(c) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(d) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet with respect to the discharge 
of any functions which are not the responsibility of the executive, 

(e) to make reports or recommendations to council or the cabinet on matters which affect the 
authority's area or the inhabitants of that area 

(f) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions and to make 
reports or recommendations to the council with respect to the discharge of those functions. 
In this regard crime and disorder functions means: 

(i) a strategy for the reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and 
other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); and 

9



Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  Updated 2 July 2024 

 

(ii) a strategy for combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in the 
area; and 

(iii) a strategy for the reduction of re-offending in the area 

(g) to review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of the 
health service in its area and make reports and recommendations to a responsible person 
on any matter it has reviewed or scrutinised or to be consulted by a relevant NHS body or 
health service provider in accordance with the Regulations (2013/218) as amended. In this 
regard health service includes services designed to secure improvement - 

(i) in the physical and mental health of the people of England, and 

(ii) in the prevention, diagnosis and treatment of physical and mental illness 

(iii) and any services provided in pursuance of arrangements under section 75 in relation 
to the exercise of health-related functions of a local authority. 

(h) to review and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities of flood risk 
management functions or coastal erosion risk management functions which may affect the 
local authority's area. 

(i) To track actions and undertake an annual effectiveness review 

The remit of Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 Talk Business programme, advice and support 

 Development investment plans - town, market town, rural, Hereford City 

 Hereford Enterprise Zone 

 Higher education development 

 Adult and community learning programme 

 Apprenticeships 

 Fastershire programme 

 Digital connectivity 

 Heritage, culture and tourism 

 Social value procurement policy 

 Planning 

 Licensing 

 Regulatory 

 Capital highway maintenance, asset management and infrastructure repair 

 Council housing 

 Statutory community safety and policing scrutiny powers 

10

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=62&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IC11DDC30829111DBA731C284100B17B4


Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  Updated 2 July 2024 

 

Who attends scrutiny committee meetings? 

 Members of the committee, including the chairperson and vice-chairperson. 

 Cabinet members, they are not members of the committee but attend principally to answer 
any questions the committee may have and inform the debate. 

 Officers of the council to present reports and give technical advice to the committee. 

 People external to the council invited to provide information to the committee. 

 Other councillors can attend but can only speak at the discretion of the chairperson. 

11





 

Minutes of the meeting of the Connected Communities Scrutiny 
Committee held in Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire Council, 
Plough Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE on Wednesday 15 January 
2025 at 10.00 am 
  

Committee members 
present in person 
and voting: 

Councillors: Bruce Baker, Frank Cornthwaite (Vice-Chairperson), 
Elizabeth Foxton, Ed O'Driscoll (Chairperson), Rob Owens, Roger Phillips 
and Stef Simmons 

  

 
Others in attendance: 
 

R Allonby Service Director Economy and 
Growth 

Herefordshire Council 

C Boyles Town Clerk Ross-on-Wye Town Council 

J Debbage Town Clerk Leominster Town Council 

L Kelso Town Clerk Kington Town Council 

D Land Head of Transport and Access 
Services 

Herefordshire Council 

H Merricks-Murgatroyd Democratic Services Officer Herefordshire Council 

K Mitchell Town Clerk Bromyard and Winslow Town Council 

W Pratt  WSP 

A Price Town Clerk Ledbury Town Council 

D Thornton Democratic Services Support Officer Herefordshire Council 

D Webb Statutory Scrutiny Officer Herefordshire Council 

D Wright Head of Economy and Regeneration Herefordshire Council 

 
31. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Diana Toynbee. 
 

32. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
Cllr Stef Simmons was present as the named substitute for Cllr Diana Toynbee. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

34. MINUTES   
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were received.  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2024 be confirmed as 
a correct record and be signed by the Chairperson. 
 

35. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 

13

AGENDA ITEM 4



Documents containing questions received from members of the public and the 
responses given, plus supplementary questions and their respective responses were 
published as a supplement to the published agenda and papers.  
 

36. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL   
 
No questions had been received from councillors. 
 

37. LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN   
 
The committee considered a report on the Local Transport Plan. The Chairperson 
introduced the officers to present the council’s report. 
 
The principal points of the discussion are summarised below: 
 

1. The Head of Transport and Access Services referenced the report as published 
in the papers and noted what the LTP development process is and the aim to 
have a draft LTP in place by the end of March prior to a period of public 
consultation. 
 

2. The Chairperson asked what the risks of delay to the draft LTP timeline and what 
mitigations are in place. 

 
3. The Service Director, Economy & Growth responded that the reason for delay to 

the programme is due to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was 
out to consultation following the General Election last year. The outcome of that 
was that housing numbers allocated to the county have risen significantly. 
Therefore, there needs to be consideration of the LTP alongside the growth in 
population in the county. In terms of the risks of delay from the original plans, 
there are no hard deadlines from government as to when the LTP needs to be 
finished. With the publication of the NPPF in December, the LTP team is working 
through the implications for that and how to take forward the Local Plan to 
manage that alongside the LTP.  

 
4. The Chairperson asked what the likelihood of a draft LTP is for the March 

committee meeting. 
 

5. Will Pratt (WSP) responded that a draft LTP and the required statutory 
environmental assessments should be ready by the end of March. 

 
6. In response to a question about how alignment is ensured with the daughter 

documents to the LTP, such as the LCWIP, Will Pratt noted that the development 
of the LTP is cognizant of relevant related plans and strategies. 

 
7. In response to a question about potential government revisions to the LTP 

guidance and funding for councils and LTPs, Will Pratt noted that the new 
government is looking to publish new LTP guidance and there might be links to 
carbon around that. The current draft Herefordshire LTP is mindful of the draft 
LTP guidance that was produced a few years ago. 

 
8. In response to a question about whether the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) is an iterative process and that the high-level objectives of the 
LTP have fully taken into account the SEA findings, Will Pratt noted that the 
objectives reflect what was approved at Cabinet and which went out to 
consultation. In terms of progressing the SEA, that has been done alongside and 
in an iterative process with the LTP. A draft of the SEA has to be consulted 
alongside the draft LTP which is being worked to. 

14



 
9. Councillor Stef Simmons noted that in relation to the emerging strategy and 

priorities for the transport network, there is some concern that there is a lack of a 
priority for nature enhancement/protection in line with targets for a nature and 
climate emergency. 

 
10. The Head of Transport and Access Services clarified that the council’s 

engagement mechanism with bus operators is the Enhanced Partnership (EP), 
which is linked to the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). Last week, a board 
meeting was held for the EP to facilitate dialogue with bus operators. The 
Department for Transport (DfT) is actively seeking to enhance bus services and 
is considering bus franchising. Additionally, the council has engaged in regular 
conversations with Midlands Connect and Transport for Wales. 

 
11. The Chairperson asked how residents are being consulted. 

 
12. The Head of Transport and Access Services responded that once the draft LTP 

is available by the end of March, a period of public consultation will begin.  
 

13. Will Pratt added that there has also been an initial stage of consultation in 2024 
which helped to better understand residents’ issues and priorities which helped to 
develop a draft plan. Thereafter, there will be a second round of public 
engagement to consult on the draft plan as part of the development of the LTP. 

 
14. Councillor Roger Phillips added that there should be more work done with other 

rural LTPs to help reaffirm what is already being done and helps to build stronger 
relationships with other local authorities, particularly when campaigning for 
investment in rural and semi-rural highways. 

 
15. The Service Director, Economy & Growth added during consultation that in 

addition to the LTP, there is also the Local Plan, and there is the potential to have 
a coordinated approach to public consultation beyond March. 

 
16. In response to a question regarding the feasibility of providing a consultation 

strategy with a timeline to the committee, the Service Director, Economy & 
Growth noted that this could be done. 

 
17. In response to a question about the time-scale of delivering up-front, within the 

LTP programme, the Active Travel measures within the market towns in 
Herefordshire, the Head of Transport and Access Services noted that the council 
are close to going out to consultation with the Local Cycling, Walking and 
Wheeling Infrastructure Plan (LCWWIP) which provides further detail. 

 
18. Will Pratt added that if a significant increase in government funding is allocated 

for active travel, more measures will be implemented sooner rather than later. 
  

19. Councillor Stef Simmons emphasized that if those elements are developed in the 
LTP at an earlier stage, it can potentially benefit from government funding if 
made available at a later stage.  

 
Resolved: 
 

1. As per a previous recommendation from Connected Communities Scrutiny 
Commitee, environmental protection and enhancement needs to be better 
reflected throughout the high-level Local Transport Plan objectives and 
throughout its priorities for the transport network. This should reflect and 
align with our climate and ecological emergency declaration.  

15



 
2. The Local Transport Plan team to work with other rural local transport plan 

teams in England, as well as our neighbouring authorities, to build on best 
practice and an alliance of rural local transport plans to strengthen the 
case for rural transport to the government. 

 
3. To provide the committee with a consultation strategy for the local 

transport plan, to include a timeline for the consultation and a list of 
consultees. 

 
4. To ensure that any active travel projects are ‘shovel-ready’ for any funding 

that becomes available. 
 

38. MARKET TOWNS INVESTMENT PLANS   
 
The committee considered a report on the Market Towns Investment Plans (MTIP). The 
Chairperson introduced the officers to present the council’s report. 
 
The Service Director, Economy & Growth clarified that the purpose of advancing the 
MTIPs was to facilitate the development of a Towns Plan in response to Hereford’s 
allocation of funding from the Stronger Towns Fund. This plan was intended to inform 
the government on how the funding should be utilized. The commission was convened in 
2020, with the objective of developing the plan locally in collaboration with town councils 
and local residents to establish an evidence-based framework for resource allocation. 
Subsequently, the MTIPs were utilized in the subsequent round of Levelling up funds to 
facilitate bids for government funding allocations. 
 
In response to a question regarding the feasibility studies for the next stage, the Head of 
Economy & Regeneration stated that while limited funding opportunities have recently 
been offered by the government, the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) has been 
identified as a potential source of funding to support the development of feasibility 
studies for each market town. This will enable them to progress some of the projects 
outlined within their MTIPs. Engagement with town councils has been undertaken to 
identify the priorities that should be included in feasibility studies using the UKSPF 
feasibility funding, and then developing detailed specifications and commissioning 
consultants to take these projects forward between December 2024 and March 2025. 
 
The Chairperson asked each of the town council clerks, present at the meeting, to feed 
back their views to the committee, particularly on the process initially for creating the 
MTIPs, and how it was handled, and whether they were engaged with sufficiently, in and 
how it can possibly be improved in the future. 
 
The principal points of the subsequent discussion are summarised below: 
 

1. Liz Kelso (Clerk of Kington Town Council) provided a brief overview of the MTIPs 
for Kington Town Council which included feasibility studies regarding, in 
particular, car parking, Kington High Street Regeneration and Kington Market 
Hall and surrounds and; Kington Police and Fire Station relocation and 
redevelopment. 

 
2. Karen Mitchell (Clerk of Bromyard and Winslow Town Council) provided a brief 

overview of the MTIPs for Bromyard and Winslow Town Council which included 
feasibility studies regarding, in particular, an EcoHub, Bromyard Eastern 
Enhancement, Greenway, Health and Wellbeing Hub, and; skills development. 

 
3. The Service Director Economy & Growth noted that bringing forward capital 

schemes is complicated when the council does not own land. A lot of the projects 

16



that are in the MTIPs are long-standing ambitions for the areas that have not 
come about in the 2021-22 period. It helps to construct a case for them and helps 
to allocate resources when taking them forward. 

   
4. The Chairperson commented that the potential for the feasibility studies to make 

recommendations that could unlock funding to take individual projects to a 
shovel-ready stage would be good so that if funding does become available, 
there are projects ready to be started. 

 
5. The Service Director Economy & Growth added the investment to get projects 

shovel-ready is a revenue cost and it is where there is greatest pressure. 
Therefore, the main issue with large capital projects is how the revenue money is 
invested without knowing that the return on investment will be secured. 

 
6. Angela Price (Clerk of Ledbury Town Council) provided a brief overview of the 

MTIPs for Ledbury Town Council which included feasibility studies regarding, in 
particular, employment land, tourism and events opportunities, and local railway 
station accessibility. It was noted that there were some items on the list as 
priorities which have not been developed in the time since. 

 
7. The Service Director for Economy & Growth acknowledged that communication 

with town and parish councils can be challenging. However, the MTIPs have 
proven effective in streamlining these communications. An allocated economic 
development officer is now responsible for leading engagement with each town, 
and recently filled vacancies will further support improved collaboration with the 
councils. Additionally, it was noted that updates regarding related parties, such 
as Network Rail in connection with Ledbury railway station, should be 
communicated back to the clerks. The Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive are currently doing a tour of each of the town councils as a way of 
covering the issues that come up with those respective town councils.  

 
8. Julie Debbage (Clerk of Leominster Town Council) provided a brief overview of 

the MTIPs for Leominster Town Council which included feasibility studies 
regarding, in particular, the Marsh Court and Former Dales site, and the 
development of the Old Priory after its community asset transfer from 
Herefordshire Council in September 2022. 

 
9. Carla Boyles (Clerk of Ross-on-Wye Town Council) provided a brief overview of 

the MTIPs for Ross-on-Wye Town Council which included feasibility studies 
regarding, in particular, the enterprise park, Broadmeadow and Tanyard Lane 
Development, and other improvements to support the visitor economy such as 
high street pedestrianisation.  

 
10. The Head of Economy and Regeneration highlighted the difficulties in securing 

consultants for certain projects. In November, the council issued a tender for the 
Market House, Apron Plaza, and high street pedestrianisation but received no 
responses due to the project's broad scope. After discussions with the clerk, it 
was decided to narrow the focus to high street pedestrianisation alone for the 
next tender. 

 
After each town council clerk had spoken, the Chairperson invited the rest of the 
committee to discuss the item.  
 
In response to a question on whether stakeholders were sufficiently engaged in the initial 
development of the MTIPs, the clerks agreed that they and their respective town councils 
felt engaged. 
 

17



In response to a question about Herefordshire Council’s role to keep an eye on how 
things are changing in the market towns and keeping an evolving list of priorities for each 
of the market towns, the Service Director for Economy & Growth agreed that it would be 
a good idea to have a pipeline of regular review and to ensure that there is clear 
communication around the priorities for each of the market towns. 
 
In response to a question about how many of the five-year targets are on course for 
completion and how long should any targets be moved forward, the Service Director for 
Economy & Growth noted that the outcomes can be reviewed as part of an annual 
review which will help to address some of the communication issues with the town and 
parish councils. 
 
In response to a question about the council's awareness of the MTIPs, the Service 
Director for Economy & Growth explained that the MTIPs are active documents 
managed within the Economy and Environment department. The planning team is 
familiar with the MTIPs and reviews them when developing foundational evidence for the 
Local Plan and other documents. For instance, the MTIPs were taken into account 
during the creation of the UKSPF investment plan to align with identified priorities. 
 
In response to a question about representation within the county BID, Service Director 
for Economy & Growth added that the town councils have a seat on the board of the 
DBID. The clerks noted the lack of feedback from DBID meetings and suggested there 
could be better communication in relation to the DBID.  
 
The Chairperson added that an agenda item on the committee’s work programme later 
in the year is looking at the DBID specifically.  
 
Carla Boyles noted that there is a lot of difference between what the county Business 
Improvement District (BID) and the Hereford city BID do, and that the town council 
deliver a lot of the things that the BID deliver for the city. 
 
The Service Director for Economy & Growth responded by noting that the BIDs for the 
city and for the county are separate organisations from the council. When a BID is 
created, it has a five-year term and there is a ballot of local businesses to decide as to 
whether they want to deliver a five-year business plan which dictates what the focus of 
each BID is. For the city BID, its members are mainly retailers who pay a levy and a lot 
of the focus in on city centre enhancements and public realms improvements. They have 
recently been through a ballot for the next five-year term which focuses more on tourism 
than previously. The county BID’s primary focus is around tourism and independent retail 
enhancement and how Hereford is promoted as a place to visit.  
 
In response to a question about whether the MTIPs have been fed through the Social 
Value Engine, the Service Director for Economy & Growth noted they haven’t been as of 
yet but that they can be. There were elements of social value that were looked at by 
Rose Regeneration in drafting the reports, but there are no clear targets around social 
value at the moment. 
 
The Chairperson thanked the clerks for attending the meeting. 
 
There was a short adjournment to enable committee members to consider potential 
recommendations. The meeting recommenced and the following resolutions were 
agreed by the committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 
Herefordshire Council to  
 

18



1. Recognise that the market town investment plans are living documents 
with projects that are regularly reviewed and updated. 
 

2. Work with town councils to review annually the list of projects in each of 
the market towns’ investment plans. 

 
3. Ensure regular communications between the council and Herefordshire’s 

market towns. 
 

4. Encourage town councils to engage with their rural hinterlands on their 
ambitions, thus strengthening the understanding and loyalty to their local 
service centre. 

 
39. WORK PROGRAMME   

 
The Statutory Scrutiny Officer presented the draft work programme for the Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2024/25. 
 
The committee unanimously agreed the draft work programme for Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The committee agree the draft work programme for Connected Communities 
Scrutiny Committee contained in the work programme report attached as 
appendix 1, which will be subject to monthly review, as the basis of their primary 
focus for the remainder of the municipal year. 
 

40. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   
 
The next scheduled meeting in public was confirmed as Wednesday 12 March 2025, 
10:00 am. 
 

 
The meeting ended at 12.57 pm Chairperson 

19





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Danial Webb, email: danial.webb@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Title of report: Work programme 2024/5 – 
Connected Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Meeting: Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee    

Meeting date: Wednesday 12 March 2025 

Report by: Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

Classification 

Open 

Decision type 

This is not an executive decision 

Wards affected  

All Wards 

Purpose  

To consider the work programme for Herefordshire Council’s Connected Communities Scrutiny 
Committee for the municipal year 2024/25. 

Recommendation(s) 

That: 
 
a) The committee agree the work programme for Connected Communities Scrutiny 

Committee contained in the work programme report attached as appendix 1. 

Alternative options 

1. The committee could decline to agree a work programme for its future committee meetings. This 
would likely result in unstructured and purposeless meetings. 

 

Key considerations 

2. A fundamental part of good scrutiny is planning and agreeing a programme of work for the 
committee to undertake. A well-considered work programme: 

 

21

AGENDA ITEM 9



a. identifies priorities for the committee’s work that align with corporate and partnership 
priorities, as well as reflecting community concern; 
 

b. ensures that each identified topic has clear objectives that focus the committee’s work; 
 
c. creates a timetable for the committee’s programme of work so that the committee carry out 

its work at the optimal time; and  
 

d. provides officers and partners with requirements for evidence that will support the 
committee in providing evidence-based scrutiny 

 
3. To prepare this work programme, the committee chair has met with officers of the council to 

identify potential priority areas of work for the committee. These priority areas have been 
scheduled within the work programme to ensure the committee considers topics when it is 
most useful to do so. A draft of this work programme has then been circulated to the council’s 
corporate leadership team and other key senior directors, alongside committee chairs, for 
further comment and refinement. 
 

4. The most recent Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee work programme was published 
March 2025 and is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

5. Attached as Appendix 2 to this report is the council’s most recently published forward plan of 
key decisions. 

Community impact 

6. Effective scrutiny enables the committee to reflect community concern. Overview and scrutiny 
is a key part of the council's governance arrangements and provides accountability and 
assurance, as well as a vehicle for elected councillors to contribute to policy development and 
review. Scrutiny committees have the overall aim of driving improvement to services to the 
local community.  
 

7. As well as scrutinising the council's own services, scrutiny committees have the power to look 
into the provision of local health services and issues which affect the economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing of the county.  

 
8. The proposed work programme reflects – as widely as possible – key local priorities within this 

context 

Environmental impact 

9. This report contains no direct environmental impacts. However, the work that the committee 
will undertake resulting from agreeing this work programme may have direct impacts. Reports 
arising from or supporting this work will outline their potential environmental impact. 

Equality duty 

10. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively 
contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations and demonstrate that we are 
paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery of 
services. This report contains no direct equality impacts. However, the reports and issues that 
the committee will consider may have direct impacts. Reports arising from or supporting this 
work will outline the any associated equality impacts for committee consideration. 

22



Resource implications 

11. This report constitutes part of the typical function of this committee. Similarly, a programme of 
work undertaken by committee is an integral part of the council’s ‘business as usual’. There is 
no resource implication in setting or agreeing a work programme. However agreed topics in the 
work programme, in particular any requests for bespoke research or the involvement of outside 
experts or community groups, may incur resource costs. These will be contained in any 
reporting or planning of agreed topics within this work programme.  

Legal implications 

12. The remit of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 3 section 4 of the constitution and the role 
of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 2 article 6 of the constitution. 

 
13. The Local Government Act 2000 requires the council to deliver the scrutiny function. 

Risk management 

14. There are no risks identified in the committee agreeing an effective and timely programme of 
work. However there is a risk to the council’s reputation if committees fail to set a work 
programme, or set a programme of work that does not address local authority, partnership or 
community priorities. 

Consultees 

15. In drafting this work programme, consideration has been given to: 
 

a. The previous work of scrutiny committees; 
 

b. Priorities suggested by members of the committee; and 
 
c. Work with Herefordshire Council officers to develop topics and agree optimum timings 

to bring items for consideration. 
 

16. This work programme is subject to ongoing review, which may involve additional consultees. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee work programme March 2025 
Appendix 2 – Herefordshire Council Forward Plan 3 March 2025 

Background papers 

None 

23





7 
 

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee  
Committee Meeting 
12 March 2025 report deadline 28 February 2025 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 7 March 2025 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 
Highways Winter Maintenance 

 Review of winter maintenance of highways following the 2024-
25 winter period. 

 

 Overview of winter service 
 Map of highways and footpaths gritted 

during the winter period 

 Chief Operating Officer 
 Head of Highways and Traffic 

Recommendations update 
 Update to the committee on responses to its recommendations 

made in 2024. 

 List of recommendations made by the 
committee, and any outcomes arising 
from them. 

 Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

Work programme 
 Review work programme 

 Draft work programme  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 
Committee Meeting  
13 May 2025 report deadline 1 May 2025 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 2 May 2025 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Cultural Strategy 2019-2029 
 Review progress in delivering the cultural strategy. 
 Scrutinise delivery of proposed cultural developments, such as 

Hereford Shire Hall and Hereford Museum. 
 

 Draft cultural strategy  
 Events and festivals market report 
 Visit to cultural partnership board  

 Culture and Leisure Lead 
 Hereford Voice  
 Chief Executive, Courtyard 

Hereford 
 Lead officer – Hereford 

Museum 
 Chair, Hereford Cultural 

Partnership 
 

Local Transport Plan  Draft Local Transport Plan 
 Plan consultation findings 

 Interim Chief Operating 
Officer 

25



8 
 

 Scrutinise findings of public consultation on Local Transport Plan 
proposals. 

 Review draft plan before Council approval. 

 Head of Transport and Access 
Services 

 Members of Environment and 
Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee  

Work programme 
 Review work programme 

 Draft work programme  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 
Committee Meeting  
8 July 2025 report deadline 26 June 2025 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning TBC 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Tourism and Destination Management 
 Objectives to be agreed 

 Evidence to be agreed 
 Meeting with Herefordshire Business 

Improvement District 

 Culture and Leisure Lead 

Gully cleansing 
 Scrutinise progress against the October 2024 Council motion to: 

o Ensure all drains, gullies and culverts that fall under the 
responsibility of Herefordshire Council are accurately 
mapped. 

o Undertake an urgent programme of rectifying and repairing 
drains, gullies and culverts where they have been damaged 
by the recent unprecedented period of rainfall. 

o Develop a full countywide maintenance schedule that 
anticipates the likelihood of heavier rainfall in the future. 

o Publish the maintenance schedule so that ward members, 
city, town and parish councils and local people can have 
confidence in the plans.  

o Ensure that areas most at risk of flooding are prioritised for 
maintenance. 

 Evidence to be agreed  Head of Highways and Traffic 

26



9 
 

Work programme 
 Review work programme 

 Draft work programme  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 
Committee Meeting  
9 September 2025 report deadline 28 August 2025 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning TBC 

Topic and Objectives Evidence required  Attendees* 

Hereford City Masterplan 
 Objectives to be agreed. 

 To be agreed   Service Director, Growth 
 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
 Objectives to be agreed. 

 Evidence to be agreed  Attendees to be agreed 

Broadband 
 Objectives to be agreed. 

 Evidence to be agreed  Attendees to be agreed 

Work programme 
 Review work programme 

 Draft work programme  Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

 
*The Corporate Director, Economy and Environment, Cabinet Member, Economy and Growth, Cabinet Member, Community Services and Assets, Cabinet 
Member, Roads and Regulatory Services, and Cabinet Member, Transport and Infrastructure, all have a standing invitation to the meeting. 

27





Page 1 
 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN 
 

 

This document, known as the Forward Plan, sets out the decisions which are expected to be taken during the period covered by the Plan by either 
Cabinet as a whole, or by individual Cabinet Members. The Plan is updated regularly and is available on the Herefordshire Council website 
(www.herefordshire.gov.uk) and from Council Offices. This edition supersedes all previous editions. 

 

The council must give at least 28 days’ notice of key decisions to be taken. A key decision is one which results in the council incurring expenditure or 
making savings of £500,000 or more, and/or is likely to be significant in terms of the strategic nature of the decision or its impact, for better or worse, on 
the amenity of the community or quality of service provided by the council to a significant number of people living or working in the locality affected. 

 

Current cabinet members are listed below. For more information and links papers for Cabinet meetings please visit 
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=251 

Councillor Jonathan Lester Corporate Strategy and Budget (Leader of the Council) 

Councillor Elissa Swinglehurst Environment (Deputy Leader of the Council) 

Councillor Carole Gandy Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

Councillor Ivan Powell Children and Young People 

Councillor Harry Bramer Community Services and Assets 

Councillor Graham Biggs Economy and Growth 

Councillor Pete Stoddart Finance and Corporate Services 

Councillor Barry Durkin Roads and Regulatory Services 

Councillor Philip Price Transport and Infrastructure 

 

Documents submitted in relation to each decision will be a formal report, which may include one or more appendices. Reports will usually be made 
available on the council website at least 5 clear working days before the date of the decision. Occasionally it will be necessary to exempt part or all of a 
decision report from publication due to the nature of the decision, for example if it relates to the commercial or business affairs of the council. Other 
documents may be submitted in advance of the decision being taken and will also be published on the website unless exempt. 

 

To request a copy of a decision report or related documents please contact governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk or telephone 01432 261699. 

 

FORWARD PLAN FOR 1 April 2025 ONWARDS 

29

http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=251
mailto:governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk


Page 2 
 

 

The following information is provided for each entry in the Forward Plan: 

 

Heading Contains 

Report title and purpose A summary of the proposal 

Decision Maker and Due date Who will take the decision and the date the decision is expected to be made 

Lead cabinet member and officer 
contact(s) 

The cabinet member with responsibility for this decision and the officers producing the decision report. 

Directorate The directorate of the council responsible for the decision. 

Date uploaded onto plan The date the decision was first uploaded and the notice period started for key decisions. 

Decision type, exemptions and 
urgency 

Whether the decision is a Key or Non-Key decision, if the report is expected to be fully open, partly exempt or 
fully exempt and if urgency procedures are being followed. 

 

 

Decisions to be taken by Cabinet at a formal meeting are listed first, ordered by date, and include both Key and Non-Key decisions. Decisions to be 
taken by individual Cabinet Members are then listed, grouped by portfolio area and sorted by date. These include Key decisions only. 

30



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 3 
 

 

Cabinet decisions by date (Key and Non-key listed) 

 

Housing Development Company 

To explore the development of a council owned 
housing development company. There is a critical 
need for additional housing in the county. 
Following the outcome of a recent best practice 
study of how other Local Authorities across 
England have addressed this issue, the Connected 
Communities Scrutiny Committee have 
recommended that the council explore the 
development of a council owned housing 
development company, which is supported by the 
Cross Party Housing Working Group. 

Cabinet 

6 March 2025 

Cabinet member economy 
and growth 

 

Roger Allonby, Service 
Director Economy and 
Growth 
Roger.Allonby@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260330 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Q3 2024/25 Budget Report 

To report the forecast position for 2024/25 at 
Quarter 3 (December 2024). 

Cabinet 

6 March 2025 

Cabinet member finance 
and corporate services 

 

Rachael Sanders, Director 
of Finance 
Rachael.sanders@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 383775 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

31



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 4 
 

Q3 Performance Report 

To report to Cabinet the quarterly performance 
updates for across the council. 

Cabinet 

6 March 2025 

Cabinet member finance 
and corporate services 

 

Jessica Karia, Head of 
Corporate Performance and 
Intelligence 
jessica.karia@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260976 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

Delivery Plan 2025-26 

To approve the council’s Delivery Plan 2025-26. 
Cabinet is required to produce a delivery plan 
which sets out how the strategic priorities within 
the Herefordshire Council Plan will be delivered 
and monitored. 

Cabinet 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member corporate 
strategy and budget 

 

Michelle Price, Project 
manager, Helun Sandifort, 
Project Manager, Rosie 
Thomas-Easton, Director of 
Strategy and 
Transformation 
michelleprice@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
Helun.Sandifort@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
rosie.thomas-easton@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 383778, , 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

32



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 5 
 

Education Strategy 

To endorse the Education Strategy 

Cabinet 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member children 
and young people 

 

Liz Farr, Service Director, 
Education, Skills and 
Learning 
liz.farr@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260897 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

20 February 2025 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

Ofsted Monitoring Visit Feedback 

To share the feedback letter from Ofsted following 
their sixth monitoring visit conducted on 18 and 19 
February 2025. 

Cabinet 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member children 
and young people 

 

Maxine David, Executive 
Support Officer, Tina 
Russell, Corporate Director 
Childrens and Young 
People 
maxine.david@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
tina.russell@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260044, Tel: 01432 260 267 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

NEW ITEM 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

33



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 6 
 

Re-procurement of Unit 4 Business World 

Re-procurement of our ERP system - Unit 4 
Business World 

Cabinet 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member finance 
and corporate services 

 

Simon Basran, Head of ICT 
& Digital 
Simon.Basran@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

SEND inspection update (formerly known as 
Education Update and Overview) 

To update Cabinet on the outcome of the SEND 
Inspection carried out by Ofsted and CQC.  
 
 

Cabinet 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member children 
and young people 

 

Liz Farr, Service Director, 
Education, Skills and 
Learning, Hilary Jones, 
Head of Additional Needs, 
Louise Tanner, Admissions 
and 14 to 19 curriculum 
manager 
liz.farr@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
hjones@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
Louise.Tanner@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260897, Tel: 01432 260579, Tel: 
01432383333 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

20 February 2025 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

34



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 7 
 

Food Waste Collection Service 

Following the successful award and mobilisation of 
the new waste collection service this report is to 
consider the business case for the introduction of a 
new food waste collection service. 

Cabinet 

24 April 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

Ben Boswell, Head of 
Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Waste 
Services 
bboswell@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 261930 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Garden Waste Collection Service 

Following the successful award and mobilisation of 
the new waste collection service this report is to 
consider the business case for the introduction of a 
new chargeable garden waste collection service. 

Cabinet 

24 April 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

Ben Boswell, Head of 
Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Waste 
Services 
bboswell@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 261930 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

35



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 8 
 

New care facility 

To consider and agree the business case to invest 
in and develop the council’s own care facility in 
Herefordshire to meet future demand 

Cabinet 

24 April 2025 

Cabinet member adults, 
health and wellbeing 

 

Hilary Hall, Corporate 
Director Community 
Wellbeing, Hayley Doyle, 
Service Director - All Age 
Commissioning 
Hilary.Hall@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
Hayley.Doyle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260832 

 

 

Community 
Wellbeing 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

 

  

 

Herefordshire and Worcestershire Group 
Training Association Ltd (HWGTA) Investment 
Partnership Model 

To develop a business case outlining options for a 
preferred investment model and; 
 
to approve the preferred investment model option 
for the HWGTA Ltd and Herefordshire Council 
partnership to enable the development of a 
vocational centre of excellence on Skylon Park. 

Cabinet 

15 May 2025 

Cabinet member 
community services and 
assets 

 

Joni Hughes, Head of Chief 
Executive's Office, Gabriela 
Singh, Project Manager 
Joni.Hughes@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
Gabriella.Singh@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260598, Tel: 01432 260375 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Cabinet Member Decisions (Key decisions only) 

 

Portfolio: adults, health and wellbeing 

 

36



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 9 
 

Portfolio: children and young people 

 

High Needs Budget 2025/26 

To approve the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)  
high needs budget for 2024/25 as recommended  
by Schools Forum. 

Cabinet 
member 
children and 
young people 

28 March 2025 

Cabinet member children 
and young people 

 

Clare Bellis-powley, Senior 
Finance Business Partner 
clare.bellis-powley@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Portfolio: community services and assets 

 

Property Services Estate Capital Building 
Improvement Programme 2025/28 

To agree the proposed programme of works as set 
out in appendices incorporating a series of planned 
project works to enable Council to deliver on its 
obligations to  
maintain buildings fit for purpose. 

Cabinet 
member 
community 
services and 
assets 

19 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
community services and 
assets 

 

Michael Griffin, Head of 
Major Projects, Anthony 
Oliver, Interim Director of 
Commercial Services 
Michael.Griffin2@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
anthony.oliver@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 383519 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

37



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 10 
 

Shire Hall Phase 2 Refurbishment Work 

Approval to spend allocated capital budget to 
deliver phase 2 of the planned Shire Hall 
refurbishment 

Cabinet 
member 
community 
services and 
assets 

19 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
community services and 
assets 

 

Johnathan Pritchard, Senior 
Project Manager 
Johnathan.Pritchard@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 261885 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Play Area Investment 

The purpose of this report is to set out how the £1 
million for Play Area Investment is proposed to be 
spent and to seek the necessary approvals to do 
so. 

Cabinet 
member 
community 
services and 
assets 

7 April 2025 

Cabinet member 
community services and 
assets 

 

Ed Bradford, Head of 
Highways and Traffic 
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260786 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Portfolio: economy and growth 

 

38



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 11 
 

UKSPF Allocation 2025/2026 

To accept and spend Herefordshire’s UKSPF 
allocation for 2025/26, totalling £2,172,966, made 
up of £401,198 capital and £1,771,768 revenue. 

Cabinet 
member 
economy and 
growth 

Before 8 
March 2025 

Cabinet member economy 
and growth 

 

Nadine Kinsey, Economic 
Development Manager 
nkinsey@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Hereford Enterprise Zone Retained Business 
Rates – Herefordshire Growth Programme 

To approve the expenditure of the retained 
business rates from the Hereford Enterprise Zone, 
to deliver a county wide business growth, skills and 
inward investment programme 

Cabinet 
member 
economy and 
growth 

11 March 2025 

Cabinet member economy 
and growth 

 

Roger Allonby, Service 
Director Economy and 
Growth 
Roger.Allonby@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260330 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Portfolio: environment 

 

39



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 12 
 

River Restoration 

To draw down funding from the Cabinet 
Commission for the delivery of river restoration 
projects. 

Cabinet 
member 
environment 

7 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

Elizabeth Duberley, 
Phosphate Mitigation Lead 
Elizabeth.Duberley@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

Non Key 

Open 

  

 

Malvern Hills National Landscape Management 
Plan 

To consider and adopt the new management plan 
for the Malvern Hills National Landscape. 

Cabinet 
member 
environment 

21 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

James Bisset, Principal 
Countryside Officer, Ben 
Boswell, Head of 
Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Waste 
Services 
bboswell@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 261930 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

40



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 13 
 

Wye Valley National Landscapes - acceptance 
of grant funding 

This report seeks approval to accept a number of 
confirmed and indicative funding awards, 
allocations and bids from National Grid, DEFRA, 
Welsh Government and Natural Resources Wales 
for the future management and duties of the Wye 
Valley National Landscape, an Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). This report 
also seeks approval to delegate the review of the 
AONB Management Plan and the renewal of a 
Memorandum of Understanding between the 4 
constituent local authorities, on account of the 
complex nature of the cross-border designation. 

Cabinet 
member 
environment 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

Ben Boswell, Head of 
Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Waste 
Services 
bboswell@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 261930 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Warm Homes: Local Grant 

We are seeking approval to apply for and spend 
funding under the new Warm Homes: Local Grant 
funding scheme 

Cabinet 
member 
environment 

31 March 2025 

Cabinet member 
environment 

 

Bernadette Muldowney, 
Programme Management 
Office 
Bernadette.Muldowney@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Portfolio: finance and corporate services 

 

41



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 14 
 

ICT systems upgrades & server replacements 

Draw down of funds to perform ICT Systems 
upgrades and replace servers. 

Cabinet 
member 
finance and 
corporate 
services 

27 March 2025 

Cabinet member finance 
and corporate services 

 

Simon Basran, Head of ICT 
& Digital 
Simon.Basran@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Debt Enforcement Contract Award 

To award the debt enforcement contract 

Cabinet 
member 
finance and 
corporate 
services 

31 March 2025 

Cabinet member finance 
and corporate services 

 

Rachael Sanders, Director 
of Finance 
Rachael.sanders@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 383775 

 

 

Corporate 
Support Centre 

 

NEW ITEM 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Portfolio: roads and regulatory services 

 

42



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 15 
 

Highways Infrastructure Investment - 
Additional Funding 

The purpose of this report is to set out how the 
£5.0 million additional Highways Infrastructure 
Investment is proposed to be spent and to seek 
the necessary approvals to do so. 
 

Cabinet 
member roads 
and regulatory 
services 

18 March 2025 

Cabinet member roads and 
regulatory services 

 

Ed Bradford, Head of 
Highways and Traffic 
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260786 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Resurfacing Herefordshire Highways - 
Additional Funding 

The purpose of this report is to set out how the 
£5.0 million additional investment in Resurfacing 
Herefordshire Highways is proposed to be spent 
and to seek the necessary approvals to do so. 
 

Cabinet 
member roads 
and regulatory 
services 

18 March 2025 

Cabinet member roads and 
regulatory services 

 

Ed Bradford, Head of 
Highways and Traffic 
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260786 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Road Safety Schemes 

The purpose of this report is to set out how the 
£3.0 million for Road Safety Schemes is proposed 
to be spent and to seek the necessary approvals to 
do so. 
 

Cabinet 
member roads 
and regulatory 
services 

18 March 2025 

Cabinet member roads and 
regulatory services 

 

Ed Bradford, Head of 
Highways and Traffic 
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260786 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

43



Report title and purpose Decision 
Maker and 
Due date 

Lead cabinet member and 
officer contact(s) 

Directorate Date uploaded 
onto plan 

Decision 
Type, 
exemptions 
and urgency 

 

Page 16 
 

Portfolio: transport and infrastructure 

 

Herefordshire Flood Risk Mitigation 

The purpose of this report is to set out how the 
£2.055 million for Herefordshire Flood Risk 
Mitigation is proposed to be spent and to seek the 
necessary approvals to do so. 

Cabinet 
member 
transport and 
infrastructure 

18 March 2025 

Cabinet member transport 
and infrastructure 

 

Ed Bradford, Head of 
Highways and Traffic 
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 260786 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

Procurement of a professional services 
supplier to support Highways & Infrastructure 

To assist with the delivery of highways, transport 
and infrastructure work the Council requires the 
services of an external consultant possessing 
specialist technical skill to provide specialist 
design, project management and transport 
planning services to supplement and support 
Herefordshire’s in-house teams 

Cabinet 
member 
transport and 
infrastructure 

28 March 2025 

Cabinet member transport 
and infrastructure 

 

David Jones, Programme 
Manager, Tina Pugh, 
Senior Project Manager, 
Scott Tompkins, Delivery 
Director - Infrastructure 
David.Jones2@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
tina.pugh@herefordshire.gov.uk, 
scott.tompkins@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Tel: 01432 383320, Tel: 01432 383212, 

 

 

Economy and 
Environment 

 

20 February 2025 

 

KEY 

Open 

  

 

 

44


	Agenda
	 
	The seven principles of public life (the 'Nolan principles')
	Guide to Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee

	4 Minutes
	9 Work programme 2024/5
	Appendix 1 for Work programme 2024/5 - Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee
	Appendix 2 for Work programme 2024/5 - Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee


